
 
Berkeley Homeless  
Services Panel of Experts 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5435    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts  

MEETING AGENDA 
July 7, 2021 – 7:00 PM  

 
Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/92491365323  
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-6833 and enter Meeting ID: 924 9136 5323 
Commission Secretary:  Josh Jacobs (jjacobs@cityofberkeley.info; 510-225-8035) 
 
1. Roll Call. 
2. Public Comment on non-agenda items. 
3. Approval of Minutes from June 2, 2021. [Attachment 1]. 
 
Updates/Action Items:  
4. Agenda Approval.  
5. Chair update (including update on Measure P recommendations and on commission 

consolidation). 
6. Discussion on site visit to Horizon Transitional Village. 
7. Discussion and possible recommendation on future plans including annual report, 

site visits and information needed to make funding recommendations. 
8. Staff presentation on all Berkeley homeless outreach teams. 
9. Adjourn. 
  
Attachments: 

1. Minutes from special meeting of June 2, 2021.  
2. Measure P Legislation. [Attachment 2]. 
3. HSPE Budget Recommendations. [Attachment 3]. 
4. City Manager’s Measure P Recommendations. [Attachment 4]. 
5. List of commissions to be consolidated. [Attachment 5]. 
6. Homeless Commission Letter to City Council re: Commission Consolidation. 

[Attachment 6]. 
7. Miscellaneous Use of Streets and Sidewalks. [Attachment 7]. 
8. List of homeless outreach teams. [Attachment 8]. 
9. City legislation passed on equitable cleaning. [Attachment 9]. 
10. Testimony re: Homeless Response team in 2022 Budget 6/29/21. [Attachment 

10]. 
 

 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 

2020, this meeting of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and 
Zoom videoconference.  Please be advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-
in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that 

could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available. 
 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx
https://zoom.us/j/92491365323
mailto:jjacobs@cityofberkeley.info


Page 2 of 3 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts Meeting Agenda  
July 7, 2021 
 
If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop-down menu and click 
on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon 

by rolling over the bottom of the screen. 
 

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-6833 and enter Meeting ID: 938 4539 3201. If you wish to 
comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by 

the Chair. 
Correspondence and Notice of Decision Requests:  
 
Deadlines for Receipt: 
A) Supplemental Materials must be received by 5 PM the day before the meeting.  
B) Supplemental Communications must be received no later than noon the day of the meeting. 
 
Procedures for Distribution: 
A) Staff will compile all Supplemental Materials and Supplemental Communications received by the 
deadlines above into a Supplemental Packet, and will print 15 copies of this packet for the Commission 
meeting.  
B) For any Supplemental Material or Communication from a Commissioner received after these deadlines, 
it is the Commissioner’s responsibility to ensure that 15 printed copies are available at the meeting. 
Commissioners will not be reimbursed for any printing or materials expenses. 
C) Staff will neither print nor distribute Supplemental Communications or Materials for subcommittee 
meetings.  
 
Procedures for Consideration:  
A) The Commission must make a successful motion to accept and receive all Supplemental Materials and 
Communications into the record. This includes the Supplemental Packet compiled by staff.  
 
B) Each additional Supplemental Material or Communication received by or before the meeting that is not 
included in the Supplemental packet (i.e., those items received after the respective deadlines above) must 
be individually voted upon to be considered by the full Commission.  
 
C) Supplemental Materials subject to a Commission vote that are not accepted by motion of the 
Commission, or for which there are not at least 15 paper copies (9 for each Commission seat, one for staff 
records, and 5 for the public) available by the scheduled start of the meeting, may not be considered by the 
Commission.  
 
*Supplemental Materials are defined as any items authored by one or more Commissioners, pertaining to 
an agenda item but available after the agenda and packet for the meeting has been distributed, on which 
the Commission is asked to take vote at the meeting. This includes any letter to Council, proposed Council 
report, or other correspondence on behalf of the Commission for which a full vote of the Commission is 
required. 
 
**Supplemental Communications are defined as written emails or letters from members of the public or 
from one or more Commissioners, the intended audience of which is the full Commission. Supplemental 
Communications cannot be acted upon by the Commission, and they may or may not pertain to agenda 
items. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will 
be made available for public inspection at Health, Housing & Community Services Department located at 
2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor.  
 
Public Comment Policy:  
Members of the public may speak on any items on the Agenda and items not on the Agenda during the 
initial Public Comment period. Members of the public may not speak more than once on any given item. 
The Chair may limit public comments to 3 minutes or less. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts Meeting Agenda  
July 7, 2021 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will 
be made available for public inspection at Health, Housing & Community Services Department located at 
2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor.   
 
COMMUNITY ACCESS INFORMATION 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the 
Disability Services specialist at 981-6342 (V) or 981-6345 (TDD) at least 3 business days before the 
meeting date.  Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. 
 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part 
of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-mail 
addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any 
communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of the public record.  If you do 
not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or 
committee.  If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not include 
that information in your communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or 
committee for further information.  The Health, Housing & Community Services Department does not take 
a position as to the content.  Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public 
record and will become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s 
website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, 
but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of the 
public record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, 
you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, 
commission or committee.  If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please 
do not include that information in your communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission or committee for further information.  The Health, Housing & Community Services Department 
does not take a position as to the content.   
 
ADA Disclaimer “This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-
related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact 
the Disability Services Specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before 
the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting.” 



 
Berkeley Homeless  
Services Panel of Experts 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5435    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts  

MEETING MINUTES  
June 2, 2021 

 
1. Roll Call: 7:00 PM 

Present:  Marasovic, Bookstein, Carrasco, Scheider (absent until 7:06), Kealoha-
Blake (absent until 7:11). 

Absent:  None.  
Staff:  Lee, Jacobs, McCormick.  
Council:  None. 
Public: 2. 

2. Comments from the Public:  One. 
 
Update/Action Items 
3. Approval of Minutes from May 19, 2021. 

 
Action: M/S/C Bookstein/Marasovic to approve the minutes of May 19, 2021 as 
written.  
 
Vote:   Ayes:  Marasovic, Bookstein, Carrasco, Scheider. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Kealoha-Blake. 

 
4. Agenda Approval.  

 
Action: M/S/C Marasovic/Scheider to approve the agenda as written.  

 
Vote:   Ayes:  Marasovic, Bookstein, Carrasco, Scheider. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Kealoha-Blake. 

 
5. Chair update. 
 

Discussion; no action taken. 
 
6. Vice-Chair Election. 

 
Action: M/S/C Marasovic/Bookstein move to elect Holly Scheider vice-chair. 
 
Vote:   Ayes:  Marasovic, Bookstein, Carrasco, Scheider, Kealoha-Blake. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 
 
 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx


Homeless Services Panel of Experts  
June 2, 2021 
 
7. Review Recommendations for Measure P Funding to be submitted to the Budget and 

Finance Subcommittee.  
 

Action: M/S/C Marasovic/Scheider move to approve the following Measure P 
recommendation: 
 

“HSPE agrees to remove the May 19th, 2021, Motion #1 as written below 
because we now have funding for the $3 million. 
 
Motion #1 – May 19, 2021: 
 
We strongly support the purchase of hotels to provide housing for persons 
experiencing homelessness. However, due to the limited amount of Measure P 
funding, we recommend pursuing other sources of funding for the Homekey 
Project if possible, including the $2.7 million from the American Rescue Plan Act 
and other funding that can be leveraged.” 

 
Vote:   Ayes:  Marasovic, Bookstein, Carrasco, Scheider, Kealoha-Blake. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 

 
Action: M/S/C Kealoha-Blake/Marasovic move to approve the following Measure P 
recommendation: 
 

“Replace previous language in the report re: 5150 and replace with: 
 
HSPE prefers that no Measure P funds be used to pay for 5150 transports. HSPE 
recommends that the City utilize alternate funding sources including FF as well as 
insurance and MediCal reimbursements. However, we understand that Measure 
P funds may need to be used to cover 5150 homeless transports, which are 40-
56% of all 5150 transports, up to $1 million.” 

 
Vote:   Ayes:  Marasovic, Bookstein, Carrasco, Scheider, Kealoha-Blake. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 
 
Action: M/S/C Marasovic/Scheider move to approve the following Measure P 
recommendation: 
 

“We approve the report as amended with the above motions and below. 
 
Add to the Downtown Streets Team item: 
 
We understand that Council has approved funding for the Downtown Streets 
Team in the amount of $920,304 from Measure P.  We believe that Council 
should have referred this item to the HSPE to consider.  While the DST is an 
excellent program, it is not consistent with the HSPE primary priority 
recommendation which is providing housing for persons experiencing 
homelessness.  We recommend that the DST funding come from the General 



Homeless Services Panel of Experts  
June 2, 2021 
 

Fund, state monies allocated for encampment cleaning, American Rescue Plan 
Act monies and other funding sources.” 
 

Vote:   Ayes:  Marasovic, Bookstein, Carrasco, Scheider, Kealoha-Blake. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 

 
8. Begin Discussion of Homeless Services Panel of Experts’ Work to be conducted 

between Budget Recommendations.  
 

Discussion; no action taken. 
 

Meeting adjourned at 9:00 PM. 
 

Minutes Approved on: _________________________ 
 
 

Josh Jacobs, Commission Secretary:        



Berkeley Municipal Code  
 

Page 1/2 

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7756-NS, passed March 16, 2021.  

 7.52.190 Homeless services panel of experts. 
A. There shall be established the Homeless Services Panel of Experts to make 

recommendations on how and to what extent the City should establish and/or fund 
programs to end or prevent homelessness in Berkeley and provide humane services 
and support. 

B. An officer or employee of the City designated by the City Manager shall serve as 
secretary of the Panel. 

C. In accordance with Chapter 2.04, the Panel shall be composed of nine members 
appointed by the City Council. 

D. Terms shall expire and vacancies shall be filled in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 2.04.030 through 2.04.145 of this Code. 

E. Each member of the Panel must: 
1. Have experience in the development, administration, provision and/or evaluation 

of homeless programs in a government or non-profit capacity; or 
2. Have current or past lived experience with homelessness; or 
3. Have experience in researching the causes, impacts and solutions to 

homelessness; or 
4. Have experience with state and/or local homeless policy, funding or programs; or 
5. Have experience with federal homeless policy and funding administration such 

as the Continuum of Care Program; or 
6. Have experience in the development and financing of affordable housing for 

formerly homeless persons; or 
7. Have experience in the provision of mental health and/or substance use 

programs for homeless persons. 
F. In accordance with Section 3.02.040, members of the Panel may be reappointed 

but shall not serve more than eight consecutive years. 
G. The Panel shall, by majority vote, do each of the following: 
1. Annually appoint one of its members as chair and one of its members as 

vice-chair; 
2. Approve bylaws to facilitate the proper functioning of the Panel; 
3. Establish a regular time and place of meeting. All meetings shall be noticed as 

required by law and shall be scheduled in a way to allow for maximum input from the 
public. Minutes for each meeting shall be recorded, kept, and maintained; and 

4. Publish an annual report that includes the following: 
a. Recommendations on how to allocate the City’s general funds to fund homeless 

services programs in Berkeley; 
b. Information, if available, concerning the impact of funded programs on the 

residents of the City; and 
c. Any additional information that the Panel deems appropriate. 
H. Within 15 days of receipt of the publication of the Panel’s annual report, the City 

Manager shall cause the report to be published on the City’s Internet website and to be 
transmitted to the City Council. 

I. The revenue raised by the tax imposed by Section 7.52.040 is available to pay 
the usual and current expenses of conducting the municipal government of the City, as 
determined by the City Council. The City Council shall consider, but need not follow, the 



Berkeley Municipal Code  
 

Page 2/2 

The Berkeley Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 7756-NS, passed March 16, 2021.  

Panel’s recommendations on how and to what extent to use this revenue to establish 
and/or fund programs to pay for homeless services and shall annually inform the Panel 
as to the extent to which it has implemented the Panel’s recommendations. (Ord. 
7636-NS § 3, 2018) 



 
Berkeley Homeless  
Services Panel of Experts 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5435    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
June 10, 2021 

 
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Homeless Services Panel of Experts 

Submitted by:  Carole Marasovic, Chairperson, Homeless Services Panel of Experts 

Subject: Recommendations for Measure P funding  

RECOMMENDATION  
That Council accept the recommendations of the Homeless Services Panel of Experts 
(HSPE), as incorporated into the text summary, into the 2021-2022 budget and refer to 
staff for implementation. 
 
SUMMARY 
The Homeless Services Panel of Experts met on April 21, 2021, April 28, 2021, May 19, 
2021 and June 2, 2021 to discuss and vote on recommendations for Measure P funding. 
 
The recommendations are as follows:   
(See chart with monetary figures attached).  These recommendations were made with 
housing targeted as the highest priority for Measure P funds. 
 

Purchase of motels to house the homeless: At least $3 million, unless funds 
are not otherwise available. 
 
On April 21, 2021, HSPE passed the following motion "HSPE 
strongly recommends that the City Council allocate a substantial amount of 
Measure P funding, at least $3 million dollars, to purchase a hotel or hotels to 
house persons experiencing homelessness in alignment with other available 
funding opportunities, affirming its earlier motion again on April 28, 2021 "that at 
least 3 million of Measure P funding be leveraged with other sources of funding 
towards the purchase of motels". 
 
HSPE was constant in its position as to purchase of hotels/motels as a high need 
priority, only uncertain if with the competing priorities including ongoing contracts 
how much Measure P monies would be available.  That was prior to HSPE's 
learning of the updated Measure P projected revenue of 8.2 million. 
 
Permanent Housing Subsidies: $0 
 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx


"Due to the difficulty of implementing permanent subsidies and the time limits of 
Measure P, HSPE recommends moving 1.6 million from permanent subsidies to 
shallow subsidies." 
 
Shallow Subsidies: $1.6 million  
 
"HSPE recommends that Council allocate some Measure P monies to fund shallow 
subsidies to prevent homelessness for persons at risk and also to support persons 
experiencing homelessness."  (These shallow subsidies would roll over from the 
unused $1.6 million in permanent housing subsidies allocated in the previous 
year.) 
 
5150 Transports: up to $1 million (homeless transports only-estimated, based on 
recent prior years, as 40%-56%). 
 
"HSPE prefers that no Measure P funds be used to pay for 5150 transports. HSPE 
recommends that the City utilize alternate funding sources including FF as well as 
insurance and MediCal reimbursements. However, we understand that Measure 
P funds may need to be used to cover 5150 homeless transports, which are 40-
56% of all 5150 transports, up to $1 million". 
 
1367 University Avenue Permanent supportive housing: Funding as needed 
based on date of opening.  
 
"The HSPE strongly supports the 1367 University Avenue project to provide 
needed housing for persons experiencing homelessness.  The HSPE 
recommends that 25% of the needed operating expenses for this project be 
allocated for FY 2022 in the event that the facility opens in spring, 2022.  If the 
facility does not open until FY23, we recommend rolling this allocation over to FY 
23." 
 
Coordinated entry system: $1 million 
 
"HSPE recommends that the Coordinated Entry program be funded at $1 million 
based on actual expenses from FY 20 and FY 21."   
 
Pathways: $1.5 million 
 
"HSPE recommends that Pathways be funded $1.5 million to take advantage of 
the match from the state PHLA program for FY 2022." 
 
HSPE indicated an interest in monitoring compliance with issues regarding lack of 
physical accessibility for persons with disabilities. 
 
Downtown Business Association Outreach worker: $40,000 
 



"HSPE recommends continued funding for the DBA Homeless Outreach worker at 
current level of $40,000." 
 
Lifelong Medical: $525,000 
 
"HSPE recommends funding for Lifelong Medical Street Outreach at $525,000".  
 
HSPE believed this program to be successful at engaging persons experiencing 
homelessness, leading to positive housing outcomes. 
 
Berkeley Drop-In Locker Program: $50,000  
 
"HSPE recommends funding BDIC locker program $50,000." 
 
There were serious concerns raised about the lockers not being fully utilized, 
nearly half below capacity.  While recommending funding for an additional year, 
HSPE believed that the BDIC locker capacity needed to be monitored as to 
whether the low numbers were as a result of COVID or of their geographical 
location.  It was noted that Dorothy Day's lockers, centrally located in downtown 
Berkeley, were full with a waiting list. 
 
Dorothy Day House: $748,000  
 
"HSPE recommends funding Dorothy Day House for $566,000 for the shelter and 
$182,000 for the drop-in services." HSPE was highly pleased with this provider 
and believed that they worked well with persons experiencing homelessness, 
leading to permanent housing outcomes. 
 
Downtown Streets Team: $0 
 
$920,304 for Downtown Streets Team was approved on the 4/27/21 Council 
Consent Calendar without first referring this item to HSPE for review.  HSPE 
recommends that Council support this program and encourage Council to look for 
alternate funding sources so that Measure P funding can be directed towards 
housing.  We understand that Council has approved funding for the Downtown 
Streets Team in the amount of $920,304 from Measure P.  We believe that Council 
should have referred this item to the HSPE to consider.  While the DST is an 
excellent program, it is not consistent with the HSPE primary priority 
recommendation which is providing housing for persons experiencing 
homelessness.  We recommend that the DST funding come from the General 
Fund, state monies allocated for encampment cleaning, American Rescue Plan 
Act monies and other funding sources. 
 
Youth Spirit Artworks: $78,000  
 
"HSPE recommends $78,000 for YSA Tiny Homes." 



 
HSPE discussed that YSA's contract required them to facilitate the Berkeley 
youth, whom they serve, into permanent housing within two years. 
 
Evaluation and training: $0 
 
"HSPE strongly recognizes the importance of racial equity training and urges the 
City of Berkeley to use City funds to provide such training to City staff and non-
profit contractors including those serving persons who are experiencing 
homelessness.  While we do not recommend Measure P funding for evaluation of 
service providers, we acknowledge the importance of the gathering of this 
information and encourage the City to conduct comprehensive evaluation." 

 
FISCAL IMPACTS of RECOMMENDATION   
Going into this process, HSPE was advised to operate on a projected $6.2 million 
Measure P revenue figure.  As of May 25, 2021, the Interim Finance Director adjusted 
that figure to a projected $8.2 million projected revenue for 2021.  2020 brought in 
$9,512.600 million, attributed to the sale of large, multi-unit properties not anticipated for 
2021. 
 
HSPE's position is that it is providing its recommendations deferring to Council to modify 
based on revenue figures. 
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS  
Homelessness is burgeoning in Berkeley.  Affordable housing is virtually non-existent 
without assistance for persons of low-income not to speak of those who are homeless or 
at risk of homelessness. 
 
For these reasons, HSPE believed the highest priority for Measure P should be housing 
and funding paths leading to housing. 
 
Project Room Key was a successful effort during COVID.  The American Rescue Plan 
Act has now made available Project Home Key monies for the purpose of purchasing 
hotels/motels for persons experiencing homelessness.  Berkeley needs to leverage those 
monies with other monies to provide housing. 
 
Other programs, where funding was not provided through other sources, have sought 
Measure P funding.  HSPE primarily recommended funding for those most tied to 
housing.  However, in some cases, HSPE was compelled to honor existing contracts or 
situations were no alternate arrangements had been made. 
 
HSPE did not do so in all cases.  It stood firm that the Downtown Streets Team, while a 
commendable program for employing persons who are homeless and providing them 
housing resources, was at nearly a million dollars too significant an amount of money to 
come from Measure P monies.  Thus, HSPE recommended that those monies come from 



the General Fund.  Some monies, for encampment cleaning, may be able to be secured 
from a state source or even possibly, the American Rescue Plan Act. 
 
5150 transport continues to be problematic for Measure P monies that should be directed 
towards meeting housing needs. HSPE recommends an alternate source such as FF; 
improved Medi-Cal or insurance reimbursement; mental health funding, or a better 
ambulance provider contract who absorbs the differential between payment and billing or 
any combination of the above. 
 
Last year's $1.6 million subsidy allocation for permanent housing subsidies sat dormant 
due to staff's position that it could not be implemented particularly due to the Measure P 
sunset clause.  Thus, permanent housing subsidies need be relied on from other sources. 
 
HSPE chose to recommend that $1.6 million from last year be rolled over into shallow 
time-limited subsidies consistent with those monies being used for housing persons 
experiencing homelessness. 
 
HSPE also directed monies towards 1367 University Avenue as it provides supportive 
housing.  However, it was believed that most of those monies could be deferred to a 
following year due to delayed start-up. 
 
All previous coordinated entry monies were not used so this year's allocation was 
adjusted consistent with actual need. 
 
BACKGROUND   
On June 2, 2021, HSPE's recommendations were approved as follows: 
 

Vote:   Ayes:  Marasovic, Scheider, Carrasco, Bookstein, Keahola-Blake. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS   
There are no identifiable environmental impacts. 
 
RATIONALE for RECOMMENDATION 
The rationale is detailed in the summary and current situation and effects as stated above. 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
At the May 19, 2021 meeting, a commissioner, newly appointed as of that meeting, 
proposed an alternative proposal with all subsidy monies allocated towards homeless 
families, also proposing elimination of funding for Youth Spirit Artworks, the BDIC Locker 
Program and the DBA social worker. 
 
CITY MANAGER   
Concurs or see companion report if does not concur. 
 
CONTACT PERSON 



Josh Jacobs, Homeless Services Coordinator, (510) 981-5435 
 
Attachments: 

1. Summary of Fiscal Year 2022 Measure P Recommendations 



Summary of Fiscal Year 2022 Measure P Recommendations 
 

Revenues 
FY 2019 
Actual 

FY 2020 
Actual 

FY 2021 
Estimate 

FY 2022 CM 
Estimate 

FY 2022 HSPOE 
Recommendations 

Beginning Fund Balance $0 $2,932,313 $9,859,779 $10,441,162 $10,441,162 

Measure P Revenues $2,932,313 $9,512,603 $9,200,000 $8,500,000 $8,500,000 

Balance of Funds $2,932,313 $12,444,916 $19,059,779 $18,941,162 $18,941,162 

LESS: Total Expenses $0 $2,585,137 $8,618,617 $11,880,687 $10,960,721 

Personnel Costs $0 $118,521 $279,927 $336,952 $336,952 

Finance: Accountant II $0 $0 $152,965 $158,319 $158,319 

Finance: Contract Staffing $0 $38,266 $11,734 $0 $0 
HHCS: Community Services 
Specialist II $0 $80,255 $115,228 $178,633 $178,633 
HHCS: 50% Senior Management 
Analyst $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Program Expenses $5,864,626 $2,466,616 $8,338,690 $11,543,735 $10,623,769 

Fire: 5150 Response & Transport $0 $846,616 $2,753,384 $2,400,000 $1,000,000 

Dorothy Day House Shelter $0 $0 $300,000 $566,000 $566,000 

Dorothy Day House Drop In $0 $0 $21,340 $182,000 $182,000 

Pathway STAIR Center $0 $0 $1,200,000 $1,499,525 $1,499,525 

No Place Like Home $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Coordinated Entry System $0 $0 $0 $1,442,426 $1,000,000 

BDIC Locker Program $0 $0 $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 
LifeLong Medical - Street 
Medicine $0 $0 $50,000 $525,000 $525,000 

YSA Tiny Homes $0 $0 $117,000 $78,000 $78,000 

DBA- Homeless Outreach Worker $0 $20,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 

Downtown Streets Team $0 $0 $225,000 $225,000 $0 

Outdoor Shelter $0 $0 $168,000 $1,002,000 $850,000 

Permanent Housing Subsidies $0 $0 $1,501,078 $0 $0 

Homekey Project $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

Shallow Subsidies $0 $0 $0 $1,600,000 $1,600,000 

1367 University Avenue  $0 $0 $932,975 $900,000 $233,244 

HHCS: Square One Vouchers $0 $0 $65,947 $0 $0 

Training and Evaluation $0 $0 $0 $133,334 $0 

Homeless Response Team $0 $0 $938,966 $900,450 $0 

Berkeley Relief Fund $0 $1,600,000 $0 $0 $0 

Fiscal Year Surplus (Shortfall)  $2,932,313   $6,927,466   $581,384   $(3,380,687)  $(2,460,721) 

Ending Fund Balance  $2,932,313   $9,859,779   $10,441,162   $7,060,475   $7,980,441  
 



 

Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager 

 
 
Date: June 10, 2021 

To: Budget & Finance Policy Committee 

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 

Submitted by:  David White, Deputy City Manager 
 
Subject: Measure P Projection and Allocations as of June 10, 2021 
 
 
Attached to this memorandum is an update to Measure P projections and allocations 
prepared by city staff.  At a high level, the attachment reflects the following: 
 
 Increase in revenue projections to conform to the recent update provided to the 

Budget and Finance Policy Committee on June 2, 2021. 
 

 A requested allocation of $5.0 million in FY 2022 to support the City’s efforts in 
acquiring a hotel under Project Homekey. The Homeless Panel of Experts 
recommends allocating $3.0 million but staff believes additional resources may be 
needed to effectuate an acquisition.  Importantly, under the American Rescue Plan, 
the City will receive approximately $2.7 million that will be utilized as well.  
 

 For 5150 transports, there is an allocation of $2.4 million to enable the existing 
contract with Falck to be extended for an additional year to continue providing this 
service.   

 
 Resources for the Coordinated Entry System have been reduced by a little more 

than $400,000 to $1.0 million. 
 

 Adjustments to the costs of the Homeless Response Team that results in FY 2022 
expenditures estimated at $900,450. Previous estimates were slightly higher. (See 
Exhibit 2 for detail costs associated with the Homeless Response Team) 

 
 Updated costs associated with the shelter at 742 Grayson Street.  These costs 

reflect the costs associated with contracts that have been approved by City Council.  
The Homeless Panel of Experts allocates $850,000 to the shelter but additional 
resources are needed.  
 

  



Measure P June 10, 2021                                                                                                       

Page 2 

 City staff is asking for the Budget and Finance Policy Committee to consider a 
recommendation from staff to provide flexibility to direct resources associated with 
permanent housing subsidies as a shallow subsidy program. Shallow rental 
subsidies provide a small amount of money to bridge the gap between income and 
rent. This approach recognizes persistent shortfalls in income for households living 
from paycheck-to-paycheck and struggling to cover housing and basic living 
expenditures at their earned wage levels.  
 

 Resources for the University Avenue Step Up project have been adjusted to reflect 
when staff understands the project will open and resources will actually be needed. 

 
 For FY 2022, staff is requesting an allocation of $50,000 for training and evaluation 

whereas the Homeless Panel of Experts does not recommend that any resources be 
allocated to this activity.  City staff would utilize these resources to evaluate the 
effectiveness of resources deployed under Measure P.  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Measure P Projection and Allocations 
 
 
i:\budget\fy 22\budget and finance policy committee questions\06-9 budget and finance policy committee measure p (02).docx 



DRAFT, SUBJECT TO CHANGE

EXHIBIT 1

FY 2019 
Actuals

FY 2020 
Actual

FY 2021 
Estimate

FY 2022 
Estimate

FY 2023 
Estimate

FY 2024 
Estimate

Revenues
Beginning Fund Balance $2,932,313 $9,859,779 $11,374,137 $4,185,966 $219,822
Measure P Revenues (1) 2,932,313 9,512,603 9,200,000 8,500,000 8,500,000 8,500,000
Permanent Local Housing Allocation (FY 21) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenues and Balance of Funds 2,932,313 12,444,916 19,059,779 19,874,137 12,685,966 8,719,822
LESS:  Total Expenses 0 2,585,137 7,685,642 15,688,170 12,466,144 12,218,776
Personnel Costs 0 118,521 279,927 336,951 460,909 477,041
Finance: Accountant II (2) 0 152,965 158,319 163,860 169,595
Finance: Contract Staffing 38,266 11,734 0 0 0
HHCS: Community Services Specialist II (Filled) (3) 80,255 115,228 178,633 184,885 191,356
HHCS: 50% Senior Management Analyst (Requested) (4) 0 0 0 112,164 116,090
Non-Personnel Costs/ Program Expenses 0 2,466,616 7,405,715 15,351,219 12,005,235 11,741,735
Fire: 5150 Response & Transport (2) (5) 0 846,616 2,753,384 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000
Dorothy Day House Shelter (6) 0 0 300,000 566,000 566,000 566,000
Dorothy Day House Drop In (6) 0 0 21,340 182,000 182,000 182,000
Pathways STAIR Center 0 0 1,200,000 1,499,525 2,499,525 2,499,525
No Place Like Home 0 0 0 0 200,000 200,000
Coordinated Entry System 0 0 0 1,000,000 1,442,426 1,442,426
BDIC Locker Program 0 0 25,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
LifeLong Medical - Street Medicine 0 0 50,000 525,000 525,000 525,000
YSA Tiny Home 0 0 117,000 78,000 78,000 78,000
DBA- Homeless Outreach Worker 0 20,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
Downtown Streets Team 0 0 225,000 225,000 225,000 225,000
Shelter at 742 Grayson Street

Lease Payments 0 0 33,000 198,000 49,500 0
Operator (Dorothy Day) 0 0 130,000 784,000 196,000 0
Portable Toilets 0 0 5,000 20,000 18,000 0

COVID-19 Housing Solutions (8) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Project Homekey 0 0 0 5,000,000 0 0
Permanent Housing Subsidies / Shallow Subsidies 0 0 1,501,078 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,600,000
1367 University Avenue Step Up Housing Project (9) 0 0 0 233,244 900,000 900,000
HHCS: Square One Hotel Vouchers 0 0 65,947 0 0 0
Training and Evaluation 0 0 0 50,000 133,334 133,334
Homeless Response Team 0 0 938,966 900,450 900,450 900,450
Berkeley Relief Fund 0 1,600,000 0 0 0 0

Fiscal Year Surplus (Shortfall) 2,932,313 6,927,466 1,514,358 (7,188,170) (3,966,144) (3,718,776)
Ending Fund Balance $2,932,313 $9,859,779 $11,374,137 $4,185,966 $219,822 ($3,498,954)

Notes:
Measure P: General Fund (Fund 011)/ Program Code 5002
(1). Revenues revised to reflect FY 20 actuals and revised projections part of FY 21 adopted budget.
(2).  Approved as part of FY 20 budget.
(3). This position supports the Measure P Panel of Experts, monitors contracts with BACS, tracks and reports on outcomes of homeless programs and represents Berkeley at county-wide homeless coordinating meetings

(5). Assumes 1,200 calls per year and a cost per call of $2,000. Reimbursement levels will vary and may impact this estimated cost.
(6). Existing program.  FY 20 represents partial year funding. FY 21 and thereafter represents full year funding.
(7). FY 21 and FY 22 expenditures reduced by $1.0M for costs that will be covered by revenues from the City's allocation of Permanent Local Housing Allocation funds.

TRANSFER TAX -- MEASURE P PROGRAM PROJECTION
6/9/21 6:16 PM

(4). Responsibilities include processing contracts and payments for homeless contracts, tracks expenditures and assists in reporting to funders.  Funding to be shared with Measure U1 as proposed and 
discussed at Land Use Policy Committee.

(8). Per Mayor's Recommended Adopted Budget for FY 21, STAIR Center Expansion ($705,000) and Safe RV Parking ($100,000) were combined for COVID-19 Homeless Solutions. On 
December 15, 2020, City Council adopted FY 21 AAO#1 and reallocated these funds to the Homeless Response Team.

(9). Pursuant to Resolution 69,586-N.S. adopted by the City Council on October 13, 2020 and confirmation of resource availability by the Budget and Finance Policy Committee on January 28, 2020. 

I:\Measure P\Measure P Program Projection As of 06-08-21 (01).xlsx



DRAFT, SUBJECT TO CHANGE

EXHIBIT 2

FY 2021 
Estimate

FY 2022 
Estimate

FY 2023 
Estimate

FY 2024 
Estimate

Personnel Costs $261,449 $735,100 $735,100 $735,100
CMO: Community Services Specialist II 47,750 191,000 191,000 191,000
CMO: Health Services Program Specialist 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000
CMO: Social Services Specialist 75,362 163,940 163,940 163,940
PRW: Landscape Gardener 69,417 65,240 65,240 65,240
PW: Helper and Driver 0 246,000 246,000 246,000
PD: Staff Support Overtime 57,920 57,920 57,920 57,920

Non-Personnel Costs/ Program Expenses $677,517 $356,350 $356,350 $356,350
CMO: Neighborhood Services Outreach Fund 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
CMO: Neighborhood Services Mitigation Flex Fund 29,167 50,000 50,000 50,000
CMO: Staff Operating Costs 43,600 21,600 21,600 21,600
CMO: Outreach Vehicle 32,000 0 0 0
CMO: Outreach Vehicle - Replacement and Maintenance Fees 1,000 6,700 6,700 6,700
Public Works: Downtown Streets Handsweep 50,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Public Works: Tipping Fees 43,750 75,000 75,000 75,000
Public Works: Rear Loader and Stake Bed Truck 380,000 0 0 0
Public Works: Truck - Replacement and Maintenance Fees 83,000 88,050 88,050 88,050

Total Expenses $938,966 $1,091,450 $1,091,450 $1,091,450

Measure P Expenses 900,450 900,450 900,450

Homeless Response Team

I:\Measure P\Measure P Program Projection As of 06-08-21 (01).xlsx



 
Kate Harrison 
Councilmember District 4 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704    Tel: 510.981.7140    TDD: 510.981.6903     
E-Mail: kharrison@CityofBerkeley.info 

 
REVISED AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2 
 

 
Meeting Date:   June 15, 2021 
 
Item Number:  1 
 
Item Description:   Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget 

Recovery  
 
Submitted by:  Councilmember Harrison 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Move to adopt the April 5, 2021, Agenda and Rules Committee qualified positive 
recommendation to City Council as amended in Attachment 1 to maintain the Zero 
Waste and Sugar Sweetened Beverage Panel of Expert Commission’s separate 
status.  
 
RATIONALE:  
Despite the Zero Waste Commission’s key role on environmental and climate issues, 
its mandate is much broader. The Commission is responsible for making 
recommendations on City solid waste policy and goals, including commercial and 
residential garbage and recycling services, budgets, and other decisions relating to 
solid waste in the City of Berkeley. In other words, in addition to environmental 
concerns, it has a purview that includes overseeing the services and budgets of 
functions housed in the Public Works Departments, the largest department by 
percentage of the general fund. Solid waste collection is a fundamental and historic 
function of municipal governments. Further, recent developments in the neighboring 
City and County of San Francisco regarding solid waste contracts have emphasized 
the importance of maintaining a robust and independent municipal oversight body. 
Therefore, it is in the public interest that Zero Waste Commission be maintained as 
independent from other municipal departments and functions.  
 
In addition, the Sugar Sweetened Beverage Panel of Expert (SSBPPE) Commission 
has a narrow and unique focus established by the Berkeley voters in 2014 pursuant 
to BMC Chapter 7.72.090 and is generally not well-suited to be combined with the 
Community Health Commission for the following reasons:  
 

● There are specific criteria for expertise for appointed commissioners which 
differ from the expertise that is required for the Community Health 



Commission. 
 

● This statute will expire at the end of 2026, and the current statewide 
preemption that prevents new sugary drink taxes, allows jurisdictions with an 
existing soda tax to renew.  It would be short-sighted to undercut voter 
confidence in the City’s implementation of Measure D’s mandates. In addition, 
other ballot measures, specifically Measure P, have copied the Panel of 
Experts model, and other cities in the Bay Area and across the country have 
followed Berkeley’s example.   
 

● Potential violations of the strict letter of the ordinance would make the City 
vulnerable to a potential lawsuit by voters or other interested concerned that 
this change is at odds with the intent of Measure D.  
 

● The statute requires the SSBPPE to provide recommendations to Council on 
investments to reduce the consumption of sugary drinks. The bulk of their 
meetings include working on RFPs and reviewing proposals to make 
recommendations. In the alternate years, the SSBPPE monitors programs, 
works on policy that also supports the overall mission of Measure D, and 
seeks to increase the capacity of community grantees through public forums.   
 

● The SSBPPE has consistently recommended funding City staff to support the 
work of the commission and some of the staff time that is funded by Healthy 
Berkeley has also supported other public health activities. SSBPPE work 
compliments staff objectives. For example, the Commission has developed 
significant experience working on RFPs based on best practices in the field 
and evidence-based programs. 
 

● The beverage industry has previously called into question how Measure D 
funds would be used and whether our City Council could be trusted.  Measure 
D advocates were able to reassure voters by pointing to the SSBPPE which 
would do two things:  1) make recommendations to City Council about how to 
invest in community programs to reduce consumption of sugary drinks; and, 
2) be a watchdog to ensure the integrity of the investments. To date, the 
SSBPPE has done both of these things successfully. 

 
For these reasons, it is in the public interest that the SSBPPE remain as an 
independent commission.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Amended Agenda and Rules Committee Recommendation 

 
  

 



1 

 

 

Attachment 1 
 

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
On April 5, 2021, the Agenda and Rules Committee made a qualified positive 
recommendation to City Council to: 
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the enabling 
legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a phased 
approach. 

 
Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless Services Panel of 
Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight Committee first, 
and request that the City Manager bring back changes to the enabling legislation to 
implement these consolidated commissions. 

 
Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed below. 
As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, after consultation 
with the impacted commissions, they can bring those recommendations forward 
one by one. 

 
New Commission Name 
(suggested) 

Former Commissions to be Reorganized 

Commission on Climate and the 
Environment 

Zero Waste, Energy, Community Environmental 
Advisory, and Animal Care 

Parks, Recreation, Waterfront 
(special Marina subcommittee) 

Children, Youth, and Recreation and Parks and 
Waterfront 

Peace, Justice, and Human Welfare Peace and Justice Commission and Human Welfare 
and Community Action Commission 

Public Health Commission & Sugar 
Sweetened Beverage Panel of 
Experts 

Community Health Commission and Sugar Sweetened 
Beverage Panel of Experts 

Housing Advisory Commission Measure O and Housing Advisory Commission 

Homeless Services Panel of 
Experts 

Homeless Commission and Measure P Homeless 
Services Panel of Experts 



2 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Public Works and Transportation Public Works and Transportation 

Planning Planning and Cannabis 

All other commissions will maintain their current structure: Aging, Library Board of 
Trustees, Civic Arts, Disability, Commission on the Status of Women, Design Review 
Committee, Disaster and Fire Safety, BIDs, Fair Campaign Practices and Open Government, 
Redistricting, Landmarks Preservation, Labor, Loan Adjustments Board, Personnel, Planning, 
Police Review/Accountability, Reimagining Public Safety, Mental Health, Zoning Adjustments 
Board, and Youth, Zero Waste and Sugar  Sweetened Beverage Panel of Experts 

 
 

2. Refer to the Commissions impacted a process to determine the 
charge/responsibilities of the newly merged commissions, and bring 
Commission input  to the appropriate Policy Committees (as proposed by 
Vice-Mayor Droste in 4/5/21 submittal) for further recommendations to the 
City Manager on revised charge/responsibilities of merged commissions. 

 
3. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new 
consolidated commissions and the effective date of the changes. 

 
4. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment 
Commission and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy 
areas of the merged commissions. 

 
5. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be comprised of 
only Mayor  and Council appointees. 

 
6. Refer Councilmember Hahn questions to City Manager and 
Commissions:           “Commissions to Combine/Merge - Suggested 
Considerations” 

• Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and 
determine how to handle 

• Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by 
City Council, through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are 
by Charter, and by what                means they might be merged/adjusted 

• What elements of each Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well 
as relevant topics/issues not currently covered that might be added to a 
more comprehensive and/or relevant merged Commission’s charter. 

• Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a greater 
number of members. 

• The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for appointment to 



3 

 

 

the merged  Commission. 
• The possibility of recommended or required Standing Committees of 

the Merged  Commission 
• Volunteer workload and capacity given scope of Commission’s charter 

 
 



 
Homeless Commission 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5435    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: jjacobs@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Commission  

To: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
Submitted by: Homeless Commission 
Subject: Commission Consolidation  
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
On June 9, 2021, the Homeless Commission approved the following language for a letter to 
council regarding commission consolidation: 
 
“The Homeless Commission recommends: 

• at least two scheduled meetings notice prior to the date of the consolidation;  
• all Homeless Commissioners having served over one year be incorporated into the 

Homeless Services Panel of Experts unless having otherwise been appointed to 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts, making a total of eleven commissioners;  

• any outstanding recommendations from the Homeless Commission survive the date 
of consolidation; and 

• the Homeless Commission policy role as well as the community agency funding 
allocation process be fully incorporated." 
 
Vote: Ayes: Kealoha-Blake, Marasovic, Behm-Steinberg, Andrew.  
Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Gomez. 

 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
Paul Kealoha-Blake, Chair, Homeless Commission   
Carole Marasovic, Vice-Chair, Homeless Commission 

mailto:jjacobs@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Commission_Homepage.aspx
























 

Team FTE Targeted             
Encampment Area (s) 

COVID testing 
and 

vaccinations 

HRC 
Assessments 

Linkage to 
Services 
/Benefits 

Street 
Medicine

BFN Food 
bags

PPE/Supply 
Distribution

Encampment 
Closure 
outreach 

Calls for 
Services 

City of Berkeley 
Neighborhood Services   2+ Citywide encampment    

Bay Area Community 
Services (BACS) -                      
City funded: HRC and Stair 
Outreach (2 each)

4 funded 
Shattuck Corridor/MLK 
park; West Berkeley 
encampments. 

   

Bay Area Community 
Services (BACS) -                      
AC funded 

3-4 funded

HRC based with some 
targeted outreach to 
most vulnerable 
households 

 

Downtown Berkeley 
Association (DBA) 0.5 Downtown Core  

Dorothy Day House 
Berkeley Community 
Resource Center (BCRC)

.10 (Staff/ 
Volunteers)

People’s Park;  

Seabreeze; 
Ashby/Shellmound; 
2nd/University 

  

Two teams.  
Each has:

1 RN;
1 SW;

1 CHW;

.30 
(MD/NP/PA)

University of California, 
Berkeley (Cal) 1.0 LCSW People’s Park; Telegraph 

Corridor  



Life Long Medical Care 
Street Medicine Team  
(LLMC)  -

People's Park; 
Here/There; 
Respite/Safer Ground; 
Telegraph/Willard; 
Shattuck and Adeline 
Corridors; Civid Center 
Park; Seabreeze; 
Ashby/Shellmound; 2nd 
Page

 



Councilmember Ben Bartlett 
City of Berkeley, District 3

CONSENT CALENDAR
October 27th, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Ben Bartlett and Councilmember Kate Harrison

Subject: Equitable Clean Streets Budget Referral: Funding for Staff to Conduct Bi-
Weekly (Once Every Two Weeks) Residential Cleaning Services 

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the November AAO budget process to allocate $500,000 from the General 
Fund to require biweekly (once every two weeks) cleaning of populated encampment 
sites, major corridors, and encampments adjacent to residential neighborhoods 
throughout the City of Berkeley for approximately one year. The City should also partner 
with appropriate non-profit organizations to create work opportunities for homeless 
residents who can help City staff clean the streets on an ongoing basis. 

CURRENT SITUATION
On September 21, 2020, Councilmember Bartlett submitted an item that would require 
bi-weekly (once every two weeks) cleaning of populated encampment sites and 
adjacent residential neighborhoods in Berkeley. On September 29, the Agenda and 
Rules Committee approved the Consent Calendar item to be discussed at the October 
13 Council meeting. However, the aforementioned item does not specify if the City has 
the appropriate staff and financial capacity to implement additional street cleaning 
measures at this time. This item serves as a budgetary companion piece that will 
allocate $500,000 from the General Fund to fund the costs of essential staff and 
supplies for these street cleaning services for at least one year. 

Specifically, the goals of this equitable street cleaning initiative are to:
1. Promote public health and safety by mitigating trash hot spots and addressing 

the increased amount of trash in our community;
2. Reduce trash loads from municipal storm water sewer systems by complying with 

the San Francisco Regional Water Quality Board’s MRP and trash requirements; 
3. Create work opportunities for homeless residents and build staff capacity by 

partnering with non-profit organizations. 

Page 1 of 4

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
20



Councilmember Ben Bartlett 
City of Berkeley, District 3

BACKGROUND
The City of Berkeley currently mandates residential cleaning once a month and follows 
a sweeping schedule according to the street name. Residents are encouraged to rake 
their leaves for composting and avoid sweeping materials into streets or curbsides 
where debris could impede people’s ability to safely travel along the sidewalks. 
However, our current sweeping schedule has not been sufficient in addressing issues of 
littering, illegally dumped materials, and encampments in certain areas throughout 
Berkeley, especially in the South Berkeley neighborhood. 

According to South Berkeley residents, their neighborhood has been littered with trash, 
which has become a safety and sanitary concern. Reports of discarded clothing and 
illegally dumped materials, such as couches and televisions, are common in South 
Berkeley, especially along the block of Martin Luther King Jr. Way in the corner between 
Alcatraz Avenue and 62nd Street. Other encampments, trash, and debris have also 
been located in the BART-owned area. 

To promote health, safety, and cleanliness in Berkeley, the Council should allocate 
sufficient funding to hire additional street sweeping staff and provide more frequent 
residential cleaning services throughout the City. Since each neighborhood has different 
needs, the City and the street sweeping staff must use an equity lens to prioritize their 
cleaning services for areas with a greater number of encampments, such as South 
Berkeley. In addition to cleaning the surrounding area of encampments, the proposed 
biweekly (once every two weeks) cleaning services should focus on cleaning the 
individual camps as well. The City should also partner with non-profit organizations to 
build staff capacity, create work opportunities for homeless residents, and provide 
additional services to adjacent residential neighborhoods. 

The City should also employ its services at encampments on nearby non-City owned 
property, such as Caltrans. However, in these cases, the City should have the authority 
to bill the appropriate agency for the cost of staff and materials.

REVIEW OF EXISTING LAWS
The California State Water Board is one of six environmental entities operating under 
the authority of the California Environmental Protection Agency. The Board includes the 

Page 2 of 4



Councilmember Ben Bartlett 
City of Berkeley, District 3

State Water Resources Control Board and nine Regional Boards, including the San 
Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board.1 

In 2009, the San Francisco Regional Board issued a Municipal Regional Stormwater 
NPDES Permit (MRP).2 The MRP covers stormwater discharges from municipalities and 
local agencies in Alameda, Contra Costa, San Mateo, and Santa Clara counties, and 
the cities of Fairfield, Suisun City, and Vallejo. Specifically, the permit requires local 
governments to implement best management practices to control pollutants in 
stormwater. In addition, the permit includes Provision C.10, which requires permitees to 
implement trash load reduction control actions. The goal of this provision is to help 
reduce trash loads from municipal separate storm sewer systems by 40% by 2014, 70% 
by 2017, 80% by July 1, 2019, and 100% by 2022.3 

The Regional Board has specified two methods for reducing trash discharge. The most 
direct means is the installation and maintenance of full trash capture devices, such as 
storm drain inlet screens and in-ground hydrodynamic separators. The other approach 
is to implement cleanup actions, such as street sweeping, installing and maintaining 
trash receptacles, and regularly sending crews to pick up litter. 

In order to comply with the MRP and meet the trash requirements of Provision C.10, the 
Council must adopt this equitable street cleaning initiative and work towards reducing 
the debris and litter in our communities. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Debris and illegal dumping have exacerbated the safety, sanitary, and environmental 
issues of the Berkeley community. To protect the safety and health of our residents, 
residential cleaning of the camps and the adjacent neighborhoods of the encampments 
in the city should be conducted at least once every two weeks. Equitable residential 
cleaning services would ensure that Berkeley residents, especially those in South 
Berkeley, have safe and sanitary areas for residential and commercial purposes. 

In addition, the City must comply with the San Francisco Regional Water Quality 
Board’s MRP and effectively control pollutant discharge. Compliance with the MRP will 

1 https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterboards_map.html
2 https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_issues/programs/stormwater/mrp.html
3https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_issues/programs/stormwater/MRP/Prov_C10.ht
ml

Page 3 of 4

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterboards_map.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_issues/programs/stormwater/mrp.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_issues/programs/stormwater/MRP/Prov_C10.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_issues/programs/stormwater/MRP/Prov_C10.html


Councilmember Ben Bartlett 
City of Berkeley, District 3

mitigate trash hot spots, enhance water quality, and benefit our city’s ecosystems and 
surrounding communities. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Staff time and General Fund impact of $500,000. The funding is expected to cover the 
cost of staff and supplies for additional cleaning services for at least one year. For 
encampments on non-City owned property, the City would save on financial resources 
by billing the appropriate agency for the cost of staff and materials. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Bi-weekly (once every two weeks) residential cleanings would remove the litter 
populating the camps and streets, which would reduce the risk of trash clogging storm 
drain systems or polluting the waterways. This initiative works towards meeting the 
trash requirements of the San Francisco Regional Water Quality Board’s MRP. 
Compliance with the MRP will enhance water quality, benefit the City’s ecosystems and 
surrounding communities, and minimize the impacts of trash discharges on our 
environment. Litter can also carry unsanitary germs and thus, increase the ability to 
contract diseases. These issues must be prevented and mitigated, especially during a 
time when people are vulnerable to becoming infected with coronavirus. 

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Ben Bartlett 510-981-7130
James Chang                                                     jchang@cityofberkeley.info
Katie Ly kly@cityofberkeley.info 

Page 4 of 4

mailto:kly@cityofberkeley.info


Testimony re: Homeless Response team in 2022 Budget 6/29/21

- Holly Scheider, Vice Chair of the Homeless Services Panel of Experts which makes
recommendations about Measure P funding. I was appointed in March and have attended
every meeting discussing our recommendations for FY22

-
- There is a lot of agreement between the HSPE and staff
-
- However, there is one glaring omission - the Homeless Response Team was never even

mentioned and so the HSPE did not discuss or vote on recommendations. Neither the
chair nor I had heard of it before it showed up in the City Manager’s budget for Measure P.

-
- I am disturbed to see that it includes $57,920 annually for Police Dept overtime.
-
- This was never presented to us so the HSPE did not discuss or vote on it.
-
- The ballot initiative states that Measure P funds could be used for various services but

no mention of policing. Of course the emphasis of the law is housing and resources that will
lead to housing and health. (“emergency shelters, navigation centers, rehousing counseling,
rental subsidies, job training, mental health support, emergency transport and crisis
response.”)

-
- I wonder if this overtime is duplicative or in addition to the police budget?

- If it duplicates the police budget discussed in the Mayor’s budget, then it would be a
double payment.

- If it is in addition to the police dept budget for OT, that is problematic as well since it
makes me wonder what other inaccuracies exist in the police budget.  It is vital that the
City be upfront, transparent and honest about the budget for policing to fully support
the re-imagining process.

-
- Personally I would not support Measure P funding for police and am quite upset that the

staff did not present the HRT to the commission for us to weigh in on.
-


	7.7.21 Agenda - Draft
	MEETING AGENDA
	July 7, 2021 – 7:00 PM
	Commission Secretary:  Josh Jacobs (jjacobs@cityofberkeley.info; 510-225-8035)

	1. 06-2-21HomelessServicesPanelMinutes-draft
	MEETING MINUTES

	2. Berkeley Measure P language
	3. HSPE Measure P Report and Summary
	HSPE Measure P Report
	Summary of Fiscal Year 2022 Measure P Recommendations

	4. Measure P Memo staff memo
	06-10-21 Measure P Memo
	Ex 1
	Ex 2

	5. Item 1 of SPECIAL MEETING Rev Harrison (1)
	Attachment 1 - Motion.pdf
	Attachment 1
	POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION


	6. Letter - Commission Consolidation
	7. 10_30_2018; CLK - Ordinance; City Council; 7632; ; Amending Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 14.48, Miscellaneous Use of Streets and Sidewalks
	8. Outreach Info
	9. 2020-10-27 Item 20 Equitable Clean Streets Budget Referral
	10. Testimony re_ Homeless Response team in 2022 Budget 6_29_21



